HE Gollob Morgan Peddy
]

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the City Council
City of Whitehouse, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Whitehouse, Texas for the year ended September 30, 2011. Professional
standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-
133), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We- have
communicated such information in our letter to you dated September 12, 2011. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City of Whitehouse are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during fiscal year 2011. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year
for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All sxgmﬂcant transactions have been
recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estlmate affecting the City of
Whitehouse’s financial statements was:

Management's estimate of the allowance for uncollectible property taxes is based on
- management’s current judgment and past history of collections. We evaluated the key

factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance for uncollectible property taxes in

determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was:

The disclosure of the adoption of GASB Statement #54 as described in Note 1 to the
financial statements.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during
the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material,
either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole. We
did propose audit adjustments, which management approved, that converted the City of Whitehouse,
Texas' books from the cash basis to the accrual basis.
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could
be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management '
representation letter dated December 21, 2011.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion” on certain situations. If a consuitation
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Whitehouse, Texas’
auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

ther Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the
information is appropriate: and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We
compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Council of the City of Whitehouse, Texas and
management of the City of Whitehouse, Texas and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Certified Public Accountants

Tyler, Texas
December 21, 2011
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HE Gollob Morgan Peddy
B

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

City Council
City of Whitehouse, Texas
Whitehouse, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Whitehouse, Texas as of
and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Whitehouse, Texas’
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Whitehouse, Texas as of September 30, 2011, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison
for the General Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 2011 on
our consideration of the City of Whitehouse, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is not a required part of the financial statements, but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the City of
Whitehouse, Texas taken as a whole. The accompanying financial information listed as additional supplemental
information in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
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basic financial statements of the City of Whitehouse, Texas. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Gl organ /by S

Certified Public Accountants

Tyler, Texas
December 21, 2011

Gollob Morgan Peddy PC
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Whitehouse, we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.

Financial Highlights

e As of the end of the current fiscal year, the assets of the City exceed its liabilities
by $ 9,018,966 (net assets). Of this amount $1,963,563 (unrestricted net assets)
may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balance of $294,303. Of this amount $226,742 (77%) is
available for spending at the government’s discretion.

e The total net assets of $9,018,966 are made up of $7,030,373 in capital assets net
of related debt and $1,988,593 in other net assets.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The financial statements are prepared using Governmental
Accounting Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements — and Management Discussion
and Analysis — for State and Local Governments.

The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City of Whitehouse’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. = However, other
nonfinancial factors must also be considered.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets
changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus all of the current year’s revenue and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.



Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of
Whitehouse that are principally supported by taxes and other governmental revenue
(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety and
streets and drainage. The business-type activities include water and sewer services.

The fund financial statements are presented using fund designations. A fund is a group of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other local governments, used fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. The City’s funds can be divided into these categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and capital project funds.

Governmental funds. These funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the City’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may
better understand the long-term impact of the City’s near term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities. '

Proprietary funds. The City of Whitehouse maintains only one type of
proprietary fund — an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.
The City used enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide
financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial
statements provide separate information for the water and sewer.

Capital Projects funds. Capital projects funds are used for major undertakings
that are beyond the scope of the regular annual operating budget, such as
improvements and expansion of the City’s water and wastewater systems, streets
and drainage, and the construction of a major expansion of FM 346 that provides
most of the traffic flow traveling east and west through the city.



Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s
financial position. As the end of the fiscal year, September 30, 2011 the City’s assets

exceeded liabilities by $9,018,966.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net assets ($7,030,373) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt

used to acquire these assets that are still outstanding. This amount increased $185,397

during the current year primarily due to the completion of construction projects in the
City’s Capital Projects Fund. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The amount of net
assets that are unrestricted ($1,963,563) increased by $1,058,297 during the year.

City of Whitehouse’s Net Assets

Governmental Activities - Business-type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and other assets $ 479880 $ 491,210 $ 1,927,309 $ 1,568,282 $ 2,407,189 § 2,059,492
Capital assets 7,925,445 8,037,581 19,660,219 19,664,130 27,585,664 27,701,711

Total Assets 8,405,325 8,528,791 21,587,528 21,232,412 29,992,853 29,761,203
Current liabilities 139,353 134,170 414,779 357,519 554,132 491,689
Non current liabilities 4,005,755 4,334,744 16,414,000 17,093,326 20,419,755 21,428,070

Total Liabilities 4,145,108 4,468,914 16,828,779 17,450,845 20,973,887 21,919,759

~Net invested in

capital assets 3,799,329 3,746,295 3,231,044 3,098,681 7,030,373 6,844,976
Restricted 25,030 22,848 - 68,354 25,030 91,202
Unrestricted 435,858 290,734 1,527,705 614,532 1,963,563 905,266

Total Net Assets $ 4,260,217 $ 4,059,877 $ 4,758,749 § 3,781,567 $ 9,018966 $§ 7,841,444

Governmental activities. During the current year the governmental activities had an
increase in net assets of $200,340 which represented a $183,910 increase from the
previous year. ‘



The decrease from the prior year came primarily from a decrease in the transfers received

from the business-type activities.

Business-type activities. The City had a $977,182 increase in net assets for its business-
type activities during the year. This is up by $774,114 from the previous year. The
increase is primarily due to an increase in customer charges for water consumption and
an increase in property taxes as well as an increase in transfers from governmental

activities.

City of Whitehouse’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues:
Charges for services $1,149,503 § 1,122,250  § 3,128,039 § 2,631,807 § 4,277,542 § 3,754,057
Capital grants and
contributions 85,853 131,262 - - 85,853 131,262
General revenue:
Property taxes 1,620,744 1,643,899 802,070 581,652 2,422,814 2,225,551
Franchise taxes 302,948 284,790 - - 302,948 284,790
Sales taxes 674,200 657,274 - - 674,200 657,274
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 8,040 - - - 8,040 -
Interest income 13,242 12,347 2,177 4,979 15,419 17,326
Total revenues 3,854,530 3,851,822 3,932,286 3,218,438 7,786,816 7,070,260
Expenses:
General government ‘ 522,319 569,275 - - 522,319 569,275
Public safety 1,874,182 1,897,960 - - 1,874,182 1,897,960
Community development 953,581 974,783 - - 953,581 974,783
Parks and recreation ’ 61,291 76,782 - - 61,291 76,782
Interest 163,641 179,099 - - 163,641 179,099
Water and sewer
operations - - 3,034,280 2,785,043 3,034,280 2,785,043
Total expenses 3,575,014 3,697,899 3,034,280 2,785,043 6,609,294 6,482,942
Transfers (79,176) 230,327 79,176 (230,327) - -
Change in net assets 200,340 384,250 977,182 203,068 1,177,522 587,318
Net assets beginning of year, 4,059,877 3,675,627 3,781,567 3,578,499 7,841,444 7,254,126
Net Assets End of Year $ 4,260,217 $ 4,059,877  $ 4,758,749 § 3,781,567 §$ 9,018,966 § 7,841,444




Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Whitehouse uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balances may serve as a useful measure of the City’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported an ending
fund balance of $294,303 of which $226,742 is unrestricted and available for spending at
the City’s discretion. The total fund balance for the governmental funds decreased by
$23,241 during the year which was mostly due to a decrease in revenues from fines and
property taxes along with a decrease in transfers.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net
assets of the proprietary fund amounted to $1,527,705 at year end as compared to
$614,532 at the end of the prior year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the year, the City of Whitehouse did not make any budget amendments to its
original budget. Revenues were $43,532 under budget while expenditures were under
budget by $224,172. After considering operating transfers, the City had a favorable
variance of $165,814 when comparing excess revenues over expenditures for the year
which reflected effective management and a conscientious effort to maximize resources.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City of Whitehouse’s investment in capital assets for the
governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2011, amounts to
$7,030,373 net of accumulated depreciation and related debt. This investment in capital
assets includes land, buildings, machinery and equipment, water and sewer systems,
infrastructure and construction in progress. The biggest change during the current year
was the City’s continued work on various construction projects for water and sewer
improvements. The total net decrease in the City’s investment in fixed assets for the
current year (see Note 4C) was $116,047.



City of Whitehouse’s Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land $ 128,782 $ 128,782 § 25,000 $ 25000 $ 153,782 $ 153,782
Easements - - 7,800 7,800 7,800 7,800
Construction in
progress - - 77,581 1,287,123 77,581 1,287,123
Buildings and
improvements 1,951,519 2,013,503 122,934 131,595 2,074,453 2,145,098
Water and sewer system - - 19,293,435 18,053,517 19,293,435 18,053,517
Infrastructure 5,401,572 5,453,800 - - 5,401,572 5,453,800
Machinery and equipment 443,572 441,496 133,469 159,095 577,041 600,591
Total $ 7,925445 § 8,037,581 § 19,660,219 $ 19,664,130 §$ 27,585,664 $ 27,701,711

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the footnotes to this

financial report.

Long-term debt. During the current year, the City did not incur any new debt. After
principal payments of $679,326 were made against debt during the year, the City had
total debt outstanding of $20,419,755 at the end of the fiscal year.

City of Whitehouse’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

General obligation bonds $ 3,925,000 § 4,165,000 $ - $ - $ 3,925,000 §$ 4,165,000
Notes Payable - 45,169 - 9,326 - 54,495
Compensated absences 80,755 124,574 - - 80,755 124,574

Revenue bonds and '
Certificates of obligation - - 16,414,000 17,084,000 16,414,000 17,084,000
Total $ 4,005,755 $ 4,334,743  $ 16,414,000 $ 17,093,326 $ 20,419,755 § 21,428,069

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in the footnotes to this

financial report.



Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Economic trends in the City continue to reflect a more favorable outlook than the national
average. New residential construction is recovering and there are more new housing
starts underway than at this time last year. Commercial construction of a 10,000 square
foot warehouse office building is under review by staff, the conversion of an unoccupied
property is being considered for conversion to office space for an engineering company,
and recent talks with a primary developer of the town center indicate construction should
be starting within the next 90 days. These proposed commercial and current residential
construction, as they are completed, will provide increases in property tax and sales tax
revenue as well as creating a significant number of new jobs.

The City has adopted the FY11/12 budget, which provided for a property tax reduction
and an adjustment in utility rates for water and sewer in the City. City staff will strive to
operate with maximum efficiency, controlling expenditures and exploring ways to
increase revenues.

Proposed construction and development factors were not considered in the preparation of
the City’s budget and tax rate of § 0.672110 Per $100.00 property valuation for the
2011/2012 fiscal year.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of
Whitehouse’s finances for all of those with an interest in the government’s finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to:

City of Whitehouse

Attn: Stefani Wright, City Secretary
PO Box 776

Whitehouse, TX 75791

or call 903-839-4914,
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EXHIBIT 1
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
BUSINESS-
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,034 $ 760,120 $ 770,154
Receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts) 287,091 769,210 1,056,301
Internal balances 137,972 (137,972) -
Restricted Assets: '
Temporarily restricted :
Cash and cash equivalents - 187,440 187,440
Water rights - Lake Columbia - 230,000 230,000
Bond issue costs (net) 44,783 118,511 163,294
Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 128,782 25,000 153,782
Easements - 7,800 7,800
Construction in progress - 77,581 77,581
Buildings and improvements 1,951,519 122,934 2,074,453
Infrastructure 5,401,572 - 5,401,572
Machinery and equipment 443,572 133,469 577,041
Water and sewer system - 19,293,435 19,293,435
Total Assets 8,405,325 21,587,528 29,992,853
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 119,910 65,228 185,138
Deposits and other refundable balances - 187,440 187,440
Deferred revenue - » 80,885 80,885
Accrued interest 19,443 81,226 100,669
Non-current liabilities: '
Due within one year 263,075 775,444 1,038,519
Due in more than one year 3,742,680 15,638,556 19,381,236
Total Liabilities 4,145,108 16,828,779 20,973,887
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 3,799,329 3,231,044 7,030,373
Restricted for: '
Police forfeitures 8,445 - 8,445
Debt service 16,585 - 16,585
Unrestricted 435,858 1,527,705 1,963,563
Total Net Assets $ 4,260,217 $ 4,758,749 $ 9,018,966

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
10
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ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Property taxes
Sales taxes
Street assessments
Charges for services
Restricted Assets:
Temporarily restricted
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Bond issue costs (net)
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted:
Police forfeitures
Debt Service
Total Restricted
Assigned:
Capital Projects
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

EXHIBIT 3

Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
MAJOR FUNDS
OTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS ELIMINATIONS FUNDS

$ 1,490 3 - $ - $ - $ 1,490
61,355 - - - 61,355
105,810 - - - 105,810
- - 26,036 - 26,036
115,616 - - - 115,616
- - 8,544 - 8,544
123,738 120,931 698 (107,395) 137,972
- - 44,783 - 44,783
$ 408,009 $ 120,931 $ 80,061 $ (107,395) $ 501,606
119,912 - - - 119,912

- 104,346 3,049 (107,395) -
61,355 - 26,036 - 87,391
181,267 104,346 29,085 (107,395) 207,303
- - 8,544 - 8,544
- 16,585 - - 16,585
- 16,585 8,544 - 25,129
- - 42,432 - 42,432
226,742 - - - 226,742
226,742 16,585 50,976 - 294,303

$ 408,009 3 120,931 $ 80,061 3 (107,395)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 3

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets (Exhibit 1)
Total
Governmental
Funds
Total fund balances governmental funds (Exhibit 3 page 1) $ 294 303
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the govemnmental funds balance sheet. 7,925,445
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds. 65,666
Interest payable on loné~term debt does not require current financial resources.
Therefore, interest payable is not reported as a liability in governmental funds balance sheet (19,443)
Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. (4,005,754)
Net Assets of governmental activities $ 4,260,217

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 4

Pagelof2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
MAJOR FUNDS
OTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS ELIMINATIONS FUNDS
REVENUES )
Current and delinquent taxes $ 956,277 $ 662,469 $ - $ $ 1,618,746
Fines and forfeitures 372,608 - - 372,608
Licenses and permits 6,510 - - 6,510
Franchise taxes 302,948 - - 302,948
Sales taxes - regular 419,557 - - 419,557
Sales taxes - additional 1/2 cent 209,778 - - 209,778
Sales tax fees 44,865 - - 44 865
Donations - - 175 175
Solid waste collections 649,811 - - 649,811
Zoning and platting fees 200 - - 200
Intergovernmental revenue 85,678 - - 85,678
Interest and rent 12,364 867 11 13,242
Miscellaneous income 116,709 - - 116,709
Total Revenues 3,177,305 663,336 186 3,840,827
EXPENDITURES
Legislative 11,831 - - 11,831
General administration 327,457 - - 327,457
Treasury and financial 69,241 - - 69,241
Tax appraisal and collections 42,116 - - 42116
Munieipal court 245,157 - - 245,157
Library 42,500 - - 42,500
Parks/recreation 58,551 - - 58,551
Community developinent 25,187 - - 25,187
Street and ground maintenance 149,839 - - 149,839
Comnunication center 196,191 - - 196,191
Police 1,189,562 - - 1,189,562
Animal control 44,696 - - 44,696
Fire 120,000 - - 120,000
Sanitation 560,473 - - 560,473
Debt service:
Bond principal - 240,000 - 240,000
Note principal - 45,169 - 45,169
Interest and fees - 164,706 - 164,706
Capital outlay 252,766 - - - 252,766
Total Expenditures 3,335,567 449,875 - 3,785,442
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (158,262) 213,461 186 55,385

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 4

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
MAJOR FUNDS
OTHER TOTAL
DEBT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SERVICE FUNDS ELIMINATIONS FUNDS
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in $ 140,548 $ - $ - $ - $ 140,548
Transfers out - (219,724) - - (219,724)
Sale of assets - 8,040 - - - 8,040
Amortization - - _(7.490) - (7,490)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 148,588 (219,724) _(7,490) - (78,626)
Net Change in Fund Balances (9,674) (6,263) (7,304) - (23,241)
Fund Balance, October 1, 2010 236,416 22,848 58,280 - 317,544
Fund Balance, September 30, 2011 $ 226,742 $ 16,585 $ 50,976 $ - $ 294,303

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 5

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit 2) are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (23,241)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the current period. (112,136)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the government wide statements. 5,663

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued;
whereas the amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items. 330,054

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 200,340

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES
Current and delinquent taxes
Fines and forfeitures
Licenses and permits
Franchise taxes
Sales taxes - regular
Sales taxes - additional 1/2 cent
Sales tax fees
Solid waste collections
Zoning and platting fees
Intergovernmental revenue
Interest and rent
Miscellaneous income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Legislative
General administration
Treasury and financial
Tax appraisal and collections
Municipal court
Library
Parks/recreation
Community development
Street and ground maintenance
Communication center
Police
Animal control
Fire
Sanitation

Total Expenditures
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in ‘
Loan proceeds
Sale of assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses - Budget Basis

Budget Basis to GAAP Basis Adjustments (Note A)

Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under)

$

EXHIBIT 6

Page 1 0f2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
" GENERAL FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL POSITIVE/(NEGATIVE)
1,072,062 $ 1,072,062 956,277 % (115,785)
456,850 456,850 372,608 (84,242)
7,760 7,760 6,510 (1,250)
295,000 295,000 302,948 7,948
400,076 400,076 421,539 21,463
200,038 200,038 210,769 10,731
43717 43,717 44,865 1,148
640,374 640,374 653,883 13,509
250 250 200 (50)
82,243 82,243 85,678 3,435
13,000 13,000 12,364 (636)
16,512 16,512 116,709 100,197
3,227,882 3,227,882 3,184,350 (43,532)
11,543 11,543 11,831 (288)
342,031 342,031 327,019 15,012
69,947 69,947 69,241 706
40,293 40,293 42,116 (1,823)
283,450 283,450 240,546 42,904
42,500 42,500 42,500 : -
67,000 67,000 58,551 8,449
57,496 57,496 25,187 32,309
200,037 200,037 190,330 9,707
211,226 211,226 196,191 15,035
1,427,117 1,427,117 1,319,591 107,526
50,625 50,625 44,696 5,929
120,000 120,000 120,000 -
550,441 550,441 560,235 (9,794)
3,473,706 3,473,706 3,248,034 225,672
(245,824) (245,824) (63,684) 182,140
- - 53,134 53,134
71,000 71,000 - (71,000)
5,000 5,000 8,040 3,040
76,000 76,000 61,174 (14,826)
(169,824) (169,824) 2,510) 167,314
- - (7,164) (7,164)
(169,824) (169,824) (9,674) 160,150

Expenditures and Other Uses - GAAP Basis

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 6

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
GENERAL FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
VARIANCE WITH
ORIGINAL FINAL FINAL BUDGET
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL POSITIVE/(NEGATIVE)
Fund Balance, October 1, 2010 $ - $ - $ 236,416 $ 236,416
Fund Balance, September 30, 2011 $  (169,824) $  (169,824) $ 226,742 $ 396,566
Note A - Explanation of Differences Between Budget Basis Presentation and GAAP
Basis Presentation:
Sources/Inflows of Resources:
Differences - Budget to GAAP
Decrease in accrued service revenues for services earned during the current year
but billed in the following year $ (2,973)
Increase in revenues recognized for exchange transactions occurring during current year
but received in following year (4,072)
Transfers on expenditures paid in other funds 87,414
Uses/Outflows of Resources:
Differences - Budget to GAAP
Transfers on expenditures paid in other funds (87,414)
Capital expenditures recorded in Ultility Fund 5,168
Increase in accrued expenses for services rendered or goods provided during the current
year but paid for in the following year (5.287)
Net Change in Budget Basis Presentation and GAAP Basis Presentation $ (7,164)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and certificates of deposit
Due from other funds
Accounts receivable (Net)

Total Current Assets

Restricted current assets:
Temporarily Restricted
Customer deposits
Total restricted current assets

Water rights - Lake Columbia
Bond Issue Costs (Net)

Capital Assets:
Land
Easements
Buildings
Water and sewer system
Machinery & equipment
Construction in progress
Less: Accumulated depreciation

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Total Capital Assets Net Of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Noncurrent Assets:

Total Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 7
Page 1 of 2

UTILITY
FUND

$ 760,120
325
769,210

1,529,655

187,440
187,440

230,000
118,511

25,000
7,800
324,633
24,204,608
933,527
77,581

(5,912,930)

19,660,219

: 20,008,730

$ 21,725825
(continued)



CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Total Current Liabilities

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits
Accrued interest
Revenue bonds payable
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets

‘Noncurrent Liabilities:
Revenue bonds payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 7
Page 2 of 2

UTILITY
FUND

65,230
80,885
138,295
284,410

187,440
81,226
775,444

1,044,110

15,638,556

15,638,556

16,967,076

3,231,044

1,527,705

4,758,749



CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Sewer charges
Assessment revenue
Tax revenue
Charges for other services

Total Operating Revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Utility administration
Customer service
Water operations
Sewer operations
Water supply
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and fiscal charge expense
Amortization of bond issue costs
Interest income
Total non-operating revenue (expenses)

Income before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, October 1, 2010

Net Assets, September 30, 2011

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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UTILITY
FUND

$ 2,213,965
756,870

20,545

802,070

136,659

3,930,109
620,454
97,788
238,715
210,120
399,801
564,835
2,131,713
1,798,396

(886,781)

(15,786)
2,177

(900,390)
898,006

224,892
(145,716)

79,176
977,182
3,781,567

S 4758749

EXHIBIT 8



EXHIBIT 9

Page 1 of 2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
UTILITY
FUND
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: _
Cash received from customers and users $ 3,799,860
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (1,039,555)
Cash paid to employees for services (521,500)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,238,805
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances to other funds (6,262)
Transfers in 224,892
Transfers out (58,302)
Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital financing activities 160,328
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases or construction of capital assets (668,350)
Interest paid (918,076)
Principal paid on note (9,326)
Principal paid on bonds (670,000)
Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities (2,265,752)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest earned on investments 2,177
Net cash provided by investing activities 2,177
Net increase (decrease) in cash 135,558
Cash, beginning of period 812,002
Cash, end of period ' $ 947,560
Reconciliation of cash to Exhibit 7:
Cash - current asset $ 760,120
Cash - restricted current asset 187,440
Total cash, end of period $ 947,560

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT 9

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
UTILITY
FUND
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) To Net Cash
Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 1,798,396
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation expense 564,835
Increase in accounts receivable (232,992)
Decrease in accounts payable 5,823
Increase in customer deposits 27,525
Total adjustments : 440,409
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 22383805

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

NOTE 1: — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. General Statement

The City of Whitehouse, Texas operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following
services: general administration, police, fire, planning and zoning, street, solid waste, and water and sewer services.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard
setting body for governmental and financial reporting. On June 15, 1987, the GASB issued a codification of the
existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with the subsequent GASB
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant
of these accounting policies are described below.

B. The Reporting Entity
These financial statements present all of the funds of the City.

The financial statements of the City of Whitehouse, Texas include all funds and account groups and other
organizations for which the City is financially accountable. Financial accountability is determined on the basis of
appointment of a voting majority of the respective governing board, imposition of will, financial benefit or burden
and financial accountability as a result of fiscal dependency. In determining the financial reporting entity, the City
complies with the provisions of Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial
Reporting Entity” and Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 39 “Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units — an amendment of GASB No. 14”, and includes all component units of which
the City appointed a voting majority of the units’ board and the City is either able to impose its will on the unit or a
financial benefit or burden relationship exists.

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Major individual governmental funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
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available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of
special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the repayment of the City’s general obligation debt.
The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Utility Fund is used to account for sale of water and wastewater treatment by the City to businesses
and residential customers, as well as the construction of related construction projects and the payment of
the debt on these projects.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have
the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided and (2) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all
taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivery goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expense, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
1. Cash and cash equivalents — the City considers all cash in demand deposit accounts and petty cash accounts

to be cash and cash equivalents, as well as certificates of deposit and funds maintained in external
investment pools that can be readily converted to cash on a daily basis.
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Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)
or “advances to/from other funds:” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances”.

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are
not expendable available financial resources.

All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible.

The City provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon the anticipated collectibility of each
specific account, as determined by experience.

Property taxes are levied October 1 on the assessed value of property at January 1 and are due by January
31 of the following year. Unpaid taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 31. Revenue
from taxes assessed is recorded as deferred revenue on October 1. The deferred revenue from taxes is then
recognized as revenue during the year as the taxes are actually received.

Due from Other Funds

Current portions of long-term interfund loans receivable (reported in “Due from” asset accounts) are
considered “available spendable resources”.

Capital Assets — includes property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded
at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Property, plant and equipment of the government are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 25-40
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Infrastructure 40

Construction in progress — Expenditures on incomplete capital projects have been capitalized as
construction in progress. The assets resulting from these projects will be transferred from the construction
in progress accounts to the appropriate asset account as the projects are completed.

Bond issue costs — Bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the bonds under straight line or the
effective interest method.

Fund Balance Classification — During the current year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 54, which
redefined how fund balances of governmental funds are presented in the financial statements. Fund
balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in a spendable form or because
they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
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Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the City Charter, City Code,
state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by City
Council ordinance or resolution. This includes any budgeted reserve account.

Assigned — Amounts that are designated by City Council for a specific purpose but are not spendable until
a budget ordinance is passed.

Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

The details of the fund balances for the governmental funds are included in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet (page 12).

7. Net Assets — Represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt, consists of the City’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by any
outstanding debt used for the acquisition or construction of those assets. Net assets reported as restricted
are those amounts which have limitations imposed on their use either through legislation adopted by the
City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or other laws and regulations.

8. Capitalized interest — The City has capitalized interest on construction projects when material.

10. Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide
statement of net assets - One element of that reconciliation states that “Capital assets used in governmental
activities are not current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance
sheet.” The details of this $7,925,445 difference are as follows:

Capital assets, October 1, 2010, net of accumulated depreciation $ - 8,037,581

Capital asset additions, net of retirements 252,766

Depreciation of capital assets, current year 7 (364,902)
$ 7,925,445

Another element states that “Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds.” The details of this $65,666 difference are as follows:

Allowance account for uncollectible taxes $ (21,726)
Deferred tax revenues 87,392
8 65,666

Also, another element states that “Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet.” The details of this
$(4,005,754) difference are as follows:

Long-term liabilities, October 1, 2010 $ (4,334,743)
Principal paid on debt this year 285,169

Change in compensated absences 43,820

$ (4,005,754)
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B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities - One element of that reconciliation
explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated to their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The detail of this $(112,136) difference are as follows:

Capital outlay, asset additions $ 252,766
Depreciation expense (364,902)

§ __ (112136

Another element states “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are
not reported as revenues in the government wide statements.” The details of this $5,663 difference are as follows:

Change in allowance for uncollectible taxes $ (2,615)
Change in deferred revenues 8,278

b 5,663

Also, another element states “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued; whereas, the amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items.” The details of this $330,054 difference are as follows:

Principal payments on debt b 285,169
Change in accrued interest 1,065
Change in compensated absences 43,820

$ 330,054

NOTE 3 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

1. The budget for the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund are adopted essentially on the cash basis. The
budgetary comparisons for these funds are on this non-GAAP budgetary basis.

2. Appropriations lapse at year end.

3. Encumbrance accounting is not used.

NOTE 4 — DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and Investments

As of September 30, 2011, the City had the following deposits and investments:
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BOOK BANK

BALANCE BALANCE
Depository Accounts
Insured $ 265,742 $ 445,994
Collateral held by pledging bank's Trust
Department in City's name ' - -
Total Depository Accounts $ 265,742 $ 445,994
Intergovernmental investment pools:
Logic 189,678 189,678
Texpool v 308,353 308,353
MBIA . 192,331 192,331
956,104 1,136,356
Petty Cash on Hand 1,490 -
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 957,594 $ 1,136,356

Credit Risk — The City’s investment policy allows for investments in intergovernmental investment pools. The
City’s investments in Logic, Texpool, and MBIA are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry
form and are not subject to credit risk categorization.

Interest Rate Risk — The City’s investment policy allows for investments to be made in order to achieve the highest
return of interest on excess funds after consideration is given to safety and liquidity provisions of the policy.
B. Receivables

Receivables as of year end for the government’s individual major funds and nonmajor funds in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Utility
General Operating Non Major
Fund Fund Funds Total

Receivables:

Taxes $ 61,355 $ - $ - $ 61,355

Assessments - 80,885 26,036 106,921

Sales Tax 105,810 - - 105,810

Accounts (services) 115,616 688,325 - 803,941
Gross receivables 282,781 769,210 26,036 1,078,027
Less: Allowance for

Uncollectibles 21,726 ) - 21,726
Net Receivables $ 261,055 $ 769,210 $ 26,036 $ 1,056,301
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C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2011 was as follows:

BEGINNING ENDING
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT BALANCE INCREASES DECREASES BALANCE
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated: _
Land $ 128,782 $ - $ - $§ 128,782
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 128,782 - - 128,782
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Buildings and Improvements 2,495,541 - - 2,495,541
Infrastructure 7,121,055 127,905 - 7,248,960
Machinery and Equipment 1,920,131 124,861 (134,629) 1,910,363
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated ’ 11,536,727 252,766 (134,629) 11,654,864
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings and Improvements (482,038) (61,984) - (544,022)
Infrastructure (1,667,255) (180,133) - (1,847,388)
Machinery and Equipment (1,478,635) (122,785) 134,629 (1,466,791)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (3,627,928) (364,902) 134,629 (3,858,201)
Net Total Assets Being Depreciated ' 7,908,799 (112,136) - 7,796,663
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 8,037,581 $ (112,136) § - $ 7,925,445
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 25,000 $ - $ - $ 25,000
Easements 7,800 - - 7,800
Construction in Progress 1,287,123 626,374 (1,835,916) 77,581
Total Capital Assets, Not Being
Depreciated 1,319,923 626,374 (1,835,916) 110,381
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Water and Sewer System 22,439,310 1,765,298 - 24,204,608
Buildings 324,633 - - 324,633
Machinery and Equipment 942,290 5,168 (13,931) 933,527
Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated : 23,706,233 1,770,466 (13,931) 25,462,768
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Water and Sewer System (4,385,793) (525,380) - (4,911,173)
Buildings (193,038) (8,661) - (201,699)
Machinery and Equipment (783,195) (30,794) 13,931 (800,058)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (5,362,026) (564,835) 13,931 (5,912,930)
Net Total Assets Being Depreciated 18,344,207 1,205,631 - 19,549,838
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 19,664,130 $ 1,832,005 $ (1,835916) $ 19,660,219

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
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Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 60,409
Public Safety 122,815
Community Development 178,938
Parks and Recreation 2,740
Total depreciation expense, governmental activities $ 364,902

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer Operations $ 564,835

Construction Commitments

The government has several active construction projects as of September 30, 2011. At year-end the government’s
commitments with contractors are as follows:

Spent-to- Estimated
Project Date Remaining
Meadowlark Improvements b 77,581 $ 20,000

The commitments for these projects are being financed by certificates of obligation and local funds.

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2011 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Debt Service Utility Operating Fund $ 38,693
Debt Service Enterprise Debt Service Fund 85,859
Debt Service Street Construction Fund 2,150
General Fund Utility Operating Fund 835
General Fund Enterprise Debt Service Fund 10,435

8 137,972

Interfund transfers:

Transfers In

Debt Utility Utility
Service  Operating  Debt Service
Fund Fund Fund General Fund Total
Transfers out: i

Debt Service Fund $ - $ - $ 219,724 $ - $ 219,724
Utility Operating fund - - 584,321 : 53,134 637,455
Other Governmental Funds - - - - -
Utility Capital Projects fund - 1,748,502 - 87.414 1.835.916

Total transfers out/in $ - $1,748,502 $ 804,045 40,548 $2,693,095
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E. Operating Leases

During the year, the City leased out land for specified use under three operating leases. The City collected $11,625
under these leases which are for one year periods and are renewable annually.

F. Long-term debt

The following is a summary of bond and certificates of obligation transactions of the City for the year ended
September 30, 2011:

GENERAL
OBLIGATION REVENUE TOTAL
Bonds payable — October 1, 2010 $ 4,165,000 $ 17,084,000 $ 21,249,000
Additions - - -
Retirements (240,000) (670,000) (910,000)
Bonds Payable — September 30, 2011 $ 3,925,000 $ 16,414,000 $ 20,339,000

Outstanding bonds at September 30, 2011 are comprised of the following issues:
Governmental Activities:

$3,140,000 Series 2006 Refunding Bonds; maturing serially in varying amounts

through 2-15-26 at 4.80% $ 2,570,000
$1,000,000 Series 1996 General Obligation Bonds; maturing serially in varying

amounts through 9-30-12. Interest rates varying from 6.65% to 5.25% ‘ 105,000
$1,400,000 Series 2004 Certificates of Obligation Bonds; maturing serially in varying

amounts through 2-15-23. Interest rates varying from 2.15% to 3.19% 1,250,000
Total Governmental Bonded Debt $ 3,925,000

Business-Type Activities:

$5,000,000 Series 2001 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation;
maturing annually in varying amounts through 9-1-21. Interest rates varying from
4.00% to 8.50% $ 4,925,000

$2,800,000 Series 2006 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation;
maturing annually in varying amounts beginning 2-15-07 through 2-15-06. Interest at
4.20% 2,335,000

$3,100,000 Series 2008 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation;
maturing annually in varying amounts beginning 2-15-09 through 2-15-28 at 3.70% 2,811,000

$4,359,000 Series 2007 Tax Refunding; maturing annually in varying amounts
through 2-15-27 at 4.52% 4,168,000

$2,000,000 Series 2007 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation;
maturing annually in varying amounts beginning 2-15-08 through 2-15-26 at 4.32% 1,740,000
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$4,575,000 Series 2003-A Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation;
maturing annually in varying amounts beginning 2-15-06 through 2-15-23. Interest
rates varying from 2.03% to 3.46%

Total Business-Type Bonded Debt

435,000

$ 16,414,000

The funding requirements to amortize all bonds outstanding as of September 30, 2011, including interest, are as

follows:
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2012 $ 255,000 $ 152,790 $ 775,444 $ 746,526 $ 1,929,760
2013 205,000 142,775 979,957 693,361 2,021,093
2014 215,000 134,149 1,066,951 647,501 2,063,601
2015 225,000 125,507 1,118,089 597,286 2,065,882
2016 235,000 116,713 1,168,950 545,166 2,065,829
2017-2021 1,450,000 433,766 6,587,609 1,851,773 10,323,148
2022-2026 1,340,000 145,782 4,070,000 484,494 6,040,276
2027-2028 647,000 20,817 667,817
$ 3,925,000 $ 1,251,482 $ 16,414,000 $ 5,586,924 $ 27,177,406

Each bond issue has a respective bond ordinance authorizing (a) creation of an interest and sinking fund for the bond
issue and (b) establishment of a required minimum balance to be held by each issue in order to pay the next interest
and sinking requirement due.

The bond ordinances also require that the following information concerning insurance coverage as of September 30,
2011 be disclosed.

Insurer

Texas Municipal League

Texas Municipal League

Texas Municipal League

Limit of Liability
Annual
Policy Each Occurrence Aggregate Expiration Date

General Liability $1,000,000 $2,000,000 10/1/2012
Law Enforcement 1,000,000 2,000,000 10/1/2012
Errors & Omissions 1,000,000 2,000,000 10/1/2012
Auto Liability 1,000,000 n/a 10/1/2012
Auto Physical Damage .10,000 n/a 10/1/2012
Uninsured/Underinsured

Motorists 55,000 n/a 10/1/2012
Real & Personal Property 17,821,530 n/a 10/1/2012
Mobile Equipment 430,718 n/a 10/1/2012
Boiler & Machinery 100,000 n/a 10/1/2012
Workers Comp 500,000 n/a 10/1/2012

As of September 30, 2011, the City was not in compliance with the minimum cash requirement contained in its bond
ordinances as follows:

Minimum required balance

Actual balance held at September 30, 2011

Shortage
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The City has covered the shortage at year end through collection of property taxes at time of issuance of this report.
Changes in long-term liabilities

Long term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2011 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance Due Within
10/1/10 Additions Reductions 9/30/11 One Year
Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds $ 4,165,000 $ - $ 240,000 $ 3,925,000 $ 255,000
Notes Payable 45,169 - 45,169 - -
Compensated Absences 124,574 - 43,819 80,755 8,075
Governmental Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $ 4,334,743 $ - $§ 328988 $ 4,005,755 $ 263,075
Business-type Activities:
Revenue Bonds $ 17,084,000 $ - $ 670,000 $ 16,414,000 $ 775,444
Notes Payable 9,326 - 9,326 - -
Business-type Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $ 17,093,326 $ - $ 679,326 $ 16,414,000 8§ 775,444

NOTE 5 — GROUP CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The City provides water, sewer and sanitation services to its residents. Residents are provided with these services
and are billed each month for usage in the prior month. The credit granted by the City for usage of these services is
all with residents of the City. As of September 30, 2011, the City had $803,941 in net receivables from its residents
for the usage of these services.

NOTE 6 - EMPLOYEES’ PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees through a non-traditional, joint contributory,
hybrid defined benefit plan in the statewide Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-
employer public employee retirement system. The plan provisions that have been adopted by the City are within the
options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.

TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information (RSI) for TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of the
contributions, benefits and actuarial methods and assumptions used by the System. This report may be obtained by
writing to TMRS, P. O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is
available on TMRS’ website at www.TMRS.com.

Plan Year 2010 Plan Year 2011

Employee deposit rate ' 5.0% : 5.0%

Matching ratio (city to employee) 1.5to1 1.5t01
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Year required for vesting 5

Service retirement eligibility
(expressed as age/years of service) 60/5, 0/25

Updated Service Credit 100% Repeating

Annuity Increase (to retirees) 70% of CPI

Contributions

60/5, 0/25
100% Repeating

70% of CP1

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each City is determined annually by the actuary,
using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost method. This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the
prior service cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The
normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active member’s projected benefit allocated annually; the
prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable
period for that City. Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates include recognition of the projected
impact of annually repeating benefits, such as Updated Service Credits and Annuity Increases.

The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate. Both the employees and the City make
contributions monthly. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there
is a one-year delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the calendar year when
the rate goes into effect. The annual pension cost and net pension obligation/(asset) are as follows:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) $
Interest on Net Pension Obligation

Adjustment to the ARC

Annual Pension Cost (APC)

Contributions Made

Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation

Net Pension Obligation/(Asset), beginning of year

Net Pension Obligation/(Asset), end of year $

Three-Year Trend Information

94,280

94,280

94,280

Annual Actual Percentage Net Pension
Fiscal Year Pension Contribution of APC Obligation/
Ending Cost (APC) Made Contributed (Asset)
9/30/2009 § 58,345 § 58,345 100% § -
9/30/2010 62,164 62,164 100% -
9/30/2011 94,280 94,280 100% -
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General System-wide Actuarial Assumptions

The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2011 were determined as part of the December 31, 2008 and 2009
actuarial valuations. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation, December 31, 2010, also follows:

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Amortization Period

Amortization period for new
Gains/Losses

Asset Valuation Method

Actuarial Assumptions:
Investment Rate of Return*
Projected Salary Increases*

* Includes Inflation at

12/31/2010 - Prior to 12/31/2010 -
12/31/2008 12/31/2009 restructuring Restructured
Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit

Level Percent of Payroll

29 years; closed period

30 years

Amortized Cost

7.5%
Varies by age and service

3%

Level Percent of Payroll

28.7 years; closed period

30 years

10-year Smoothed

Market

7.5%

Varies by age and service

3%

Level Percent of Payroll

27.5 years; closed period

30 years

10-year Smoothed

Market

7.5%

Varies by age and service

3%

Level Percent of Payroll

28.6 years; closed period

30 years

10-year Smoothed

Market

7.0%

Varies by age and service

3%

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 2.1% 2.1% 2.1%

Funding Status and Funding Progress

In June 2011, SB 350 was enacted by the Texas Legislature, resulting in a restructure of the TMRS funds. This
legislation provided for the actuarial valuation to be completed, as if restructuring had occurred on December 31,
2010. In addition, the actuarial assumptions were updated for the new fund structure, based on an actuarial
experience study that was adopted by the TMRS Board at their May 2011 meeting (the review compared actual to
expected experience for the four-year period of January 1, 2006 through December 31, 2009). For a complete
description of the combined impact of the legislation and new actuarial assumptions, including the effects on TMRS
city rates and funding ratios, please see the December 31, 2010 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR).

The funded status as of December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAAL asa
Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded AAL Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date Assets Liability (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Covered Payroll
12/31/10 (a) $ 2,093,332 $ 2,446 382 856% § 353,050 $ 1,631,693 21.6%
12/31/10 (b) $ 2,579,572 $ 2,708,140 953% § 128,568 $ 1,631,693 7.9%

(a) Actuarial valuation performed under the original fund structure.
(b) Actuarial valuation performed under the new fund structure.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial calculations are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time
of each valuation, and reflect a long-term perspective. Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and
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assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities
and the actuarial value of assets. The schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability of benefits.

Schedule of Funding Progress (unaudited):

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded UAALasa
Actuarial Value of Accrued Funded AAL Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date Assets Liability (AAL) Ratio (UAAL) Payroll Covered Payroll
12/31/2008 $ 1,855,256 $ 2,079,154 892% § 223,898 $ 1,542,558 14.5%
12/31/2009 2,090,187 2,433,241 85.9% 343,054 1,628,046 21.1%
12/31/2010 (a) 2,093,332 2,446,382 85.6% 353,050 1,631,693 21.6%
12/31/2010 (b) 2,579,572 2,708,140 95.3% 128,568 1,631,693 7.9%

(a) Actuarial valuation performed under the original fund structure.
(b) Actuarial valuation performed under the new fund structure.

NOTE 7 - DEFICIT RETAINED EARNINGS

At September 30, 2011, the Enterprise 2007 Capital Projects Fund and the Enterprise Debt Service Fund had a
deficit retained earnings of $1,677,594 and $140,376, respectively.

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS

Effective April 1, 2010 the City renewed its contract with IESI for the collection and disposal of garbage for
residents within the city limits. The service will be paid for in accordance with the rates set forth in the contract.
The contract is for a five year period ending March 31, 2015.

Effective October 1, 2008, the City entered into a water delivery contract with the City of Tyler to purchase treated
water on an “as need” basis. The contract calls for a monthly demand fee to be paid each month regardless of
consumption and a volume rate per each 1,000 gallons consumed. The contract is for a 25 year period and calls for
an increase in the demand rate and the volume rate equal to any increase in Tyler’s residential rate plus 1%. During
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City paid a demand fee of $22,119 per month as outlined in the
agreement and notified by Tyler. The contract contains termination clauses including Whitehouse taking delivery of
untreated water from either Lake Striker or Lake Columbia.

The City has various construction projects going at year end that are primarily funded through bond proceeds issued
in previous years. These project costs are accounted for as construction in progress until the time that the project is
completed, at which time the total project costs are transferred to the Utility Fund as a capital asset.

The City has a contract with Smith County for use of its jail facility. Under this agreement, the city will pay $35 per
prisoner for each day of confinement in the jail. The agreement, which ended September 30, 2011, has been
renewed for another year through September 30, 2012.

In 2001, the City entered into an agreement with the YMCA of Tyler, Inc. for the operation of the YMCA in
Whitehouse. The City will provide $40,000 annually for a period of fifteen years for operating expenses.

During the current year, the City entered into a contract with the Whitehouse Volunteer Fire Department for fire
protection services. As part of this contract the City will no longer budget for operating expenses of the fire
department, rather budget quarterly contributions to the fire department to help with operating costs. During the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City paid $120,000 for support under this contract.
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NOTE 9 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance and insurance with TML
Intergovernmental Risk Pool. As of September 30, 2010, the City did not have any liability for unpaid claims or
adjustments under policies carried with TML. During the year ended September 30, 2010, there was no reduction in
insurance coverage from the prior year. There were no settlements in the prior three fiscal years which exceeded
insurance coverage carried by the City.

NOTE 10 — EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended September 30, 2011, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following departments of the
General Fund: Legislative, Tax Appraisal and Collections, and Sanitation. Also, expenditures exceeded
appropriations in the following departments of the Utility Operating Fund: Water Supply. These overexpenditures
were funded by greater than anticipated revenues and by available fund balance.
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SCHEDULE "1"

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
TOTAL
SPECIAL STREET NONMAJOR
REVENUE CONSTRUCTION FM 346 MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND BUILDING FUND FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and investments 3 - 3 - $ - $ - $ -
Receivables:
Street assessments - 26,036 - - 26,036
Restricted Assets:
Temporarily restricted
Cash and cash equivalents 8,544 - - - 8,544
Due from other funds - 698 - - 698
Bond issue costs (net) - - 28,182 16,601 44,783
Total Assets $ 8,544 $ 26,734 $ 28,182 $ 16,601 $ 80,061
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Due to other funds $ - $ - $ - $ 3,049 $ 3,049
Deferred revenue - 26,036 - - 26,036
Total Liabilities - 26,036 - 3,049 29,085
Fund Balances:
Restricted:
Police forfeitures 8,544 - - - 8,544
Assigned:
Capital Projects - 698 28,182 13,552 42,432
Total Fund Balances 8,544 698 28,182 13,552 50,976
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 8,544 $ 26,734 $ 28,182 $ 16,601 $ 80,061
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SCHEDULE "2"

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

TOTAL
SPECIAL STREET NONMAJOR
REVENUE CONSTRUCTION FM 346 MUNICIPAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND BUILDING FUND FUNDS
REVENUES
Donations 175 $ - $ - $ - $ 175
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Interest 11 - - - 11
Total Revenues 186 - - - 186
EXPENDITURES
General administration - - - - -
Capital outlay - - - - -
Total Expenditures - - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 186 - - - 186

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Amortization - (2,034) (3,798) (1,658) (7,490)
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - (2,034) (3,798) (1,658) (7,490)
Net change in fund balances 186 (2,034) (3,798) (1,658) (7,304)
Fund Balance - October 1, 2010 8,358 2,732 31,980 15,210 58,280
Fund Balance - September 30, 2011 $ 8,544 $ 698 § 28,182 S 13,552 $ 50,976
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SCHEDULE "3"
Page 1 of 9

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
LEGISLATIVE
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Insurance $ 4,793 $ 4,793 $ 4,678 $ 115
Business and travel 750 750 982 (232)
Legal fees 6,000 6,000 6,000 -
Contractual and fee base services - - 171 (171)
Total Contractual Services 11,543 11,543 11,831 (288)
TOTAL LEGISLATIVE $ 11,543 $ 11,543 $ 11,831 $ (288)
GENERAL/ADMINISTRATION
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Administration $ 102,500 $ 102,500 $ 83,290 $ 19,210
Clerical 42,718 42,718 44,163 (1,445)
Overtime 300 300 176 124
Uniforms and clothing 500 500 292 208
Workers compensation 448 448 352 96
Unemployment compensation 3,056 3,056 223 2,833
Employee retirement 9,837 9,837 8,449 1,388
Employee insurance 17,945 17,945 19,936 (1,991)
Retiree insurance 722 722 659 63
Payroll taxes 11,109 11,109 9,425 1,684
Total Personnel Services 189,135 189,135 166,965 22,170
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Office supplies 5,000 5,000 4,626 374
Data processing supplies 1,000 1,000 622 378
Photo/audio/video supplies 935 935 1,167 (232)
Postage and delivery 2,000 2,000 1,617 383
Motor vehicle supplies 9,000 9,000 9,445 (445)
Educational and training 800 800 3,178 (2,378)
Other supplies 2,000 2,000 2,857 (857)
Total Supplies and Materials 20,735 20,735 23,512 (2,777)
MAINTENANCE OF BUILDING/GROUNDS:
Building and grounds 2,500 2,500 1,024 1,476
Total Maintenance of Building/Grounds 2,500 2,500 1,024 1,476
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CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY: -
Office equipment $ 950 $ 950 $ 923 5 27
HVAC equipment 1,000 1,000 978 22
Communication equipment 1,000 1,000 510 490
Total Maintenance of Equipment/ Machinery 2,950 2,950 2,411 539
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Communication services 9,000 9,000 9,982 (982)
Insurance 2,511 2,511 3,238 (727)
Advertising 1,800 1,800 856 944
Business and travel 1,000 1,000 1,480 (480)
Legal fees 1,000 1,000 10,058 (9,058)
Contractual and fee base services 7,550 7,550 2,574 4,976
Utility services 66,500 66,500 69,777 (3,277)
Data processing maintenance 6,000 6,000 5,905 95
Computer training 100 100 - 100
Memberships/subscriptions . 4,000 4,000 4,806 (806)
Miscellaneous expense 250 250 128 122
Total Contractual Services 99,711 99,711 108,804 (9,093)
CAPITAL OQUTLAY
Motor vehicles 25,000 25,000 21,632 3,368
Library books and periodicals 2,000 2,000 2,671 (671)
Total Capital Ontlay 27,000 27,000 24,303 2,697
TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATION $ 342,031 $ 342,031 $ 327,019 $ 15,012
TREASURY AND FINANCIAL
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Administration $ 32,976 $ 32,976 $ 32,975 $ 1
Workers compensation 102 102 83 19
Unemployment compensation 692 692 72 620
Employee retirement 2,229 2,229 2,169 60
Employee insurance 5,425 5,425 5,528 (103)
Payroll taxes 2,523 2,523 2,414 109
Total Personnel Services 43,947 43,947 43,241 706
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Contractual/fee services 26,000 26,000 26,000 -
Total Contractual Services 26,000 26,000 26,000 -
TOTAL TREASURY AND FINANCIAL $ 69,947 $ 69,947 $ 69,241 $ 706
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VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL _(UNFAVORABLE)
TAX APPRAISAL AND COLLECTIONS
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Contractual/Fee Services $ 40,293 $ 40,293 42,116 (1,823)
Total Contractual Services 40,293 40,293 42,116 (1,823)
TOTAL TAX APPRAISAL AND COLLECTIONS $ 40,293 $ 40,293 42,116 (1,823)
MUNICIPAL COURT
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Clerical $ 52,416 $ 52,416 52,947 (531)
Overtime 500 500 207 293
Workers compensation 163 163 117 46
Unemployment compensation 1,111 1,111 224 887
Employee retirement 3,577 3,577 3,500 77
Employee insurance 10,335 10,335 15,608 (5,273)
Payroll taxes 4,048 4,048 3,809 239
Total Personnel Services 72,150 72,150 76,412 (4,262)
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Educational and training 200 200 124 76
Total Supplies and Materials 200 200 124 76
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Business and travel 500 500 560 (60)
Legal fees 6,000 6,000 6,000 -
Contractual/fee services 13,200 13,200 14,200 (1,000)
Collection agency fees 18,000 18,000 14,543 3,457
State Fee 165,000 165,000 122,472 42,528
Omni base fee 1,800 1,800 1,254 546
On Line / Credit Card Fees 5,000 5,000 4,722 278
School Truancy fee 1,500 1,500 - 1,500
Memberships/subscriptions 100 100 259 (159)
Total Contractual Services 211,100 211,100 164,010 47,090
TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 3 283,450 $ 283,450 240,546 42,904
LIBRARY SERVICES
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
Contractual and fee basis services $ 42,500 $ 42,500 42,500 -
Total Contractual Services 42,500 42,500 42,500 -
TOTAL LIBRARY SERVICES $ 42,500 $ 42,500 42,500 -
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DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
PARKS/RECREATION SERVICES
MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS/LAND
Building and grounds $ 20,000 $ 20,000 $ 12,174 $ 7,826
Total Maintenance of Buildings/Land 20,000 20,000 12,174 7,826
MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY
Playground equipment 1,000 1,000 377 ) 623
Total Maintenance of Equipment/Machinery 1,000 1,000 377 623
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
Contractual and fee basis services 46,000 46,000 46,000 -
Total Contractual Services 46,000 46,000 46,000 -
TOTAL PARKS/RECREATION SERVICES $ 67,000 $ 67,000 $ 58,551 $ 8,449
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Operations and maintenance $ 11,137 $ 11,137 $ - $ 11,137
Part-time 16,163 16,163 - 16,163
Workers compensation 950 950 341 609
Unemployment compensation 234 234 - 234
Employee retirement 753 753 - 753
Employee insurance - - - -
Payroll taxes 2,088 2,088 - 2,088
Total Personne] Services 31,325 31,325 341 30,984
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Educational and training 500 500 300 200
Total Supplies and Materials 500 500 300 200
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Insurance 571 571 557 14
Business and travel 500 500 972 (472)
Contractual/fee services 18,000 18,000 16,625 1,375
Economic Development 5,000 5,000 4,929 71
Memberships and subscriptions 400 400 263 137
Miscellaneous expense 1,200 1,200 1,200 -
Total Contractual Services 25,671 25,671 24,546 1,125
TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT $ 57,496 $ 57,496 $ 25,187 $ 32,309
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VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
STREET AND GROUNDS MAINTENANCE
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Administration $ 14,949 3 14,949 14,950 1)
Operations and maintenance 69,779 69,779 72,915 (3,136)
Overtime 6,000 6,000 4,366 1,634
Uniforms and clothing 300 300 300 -
Workers compensation 6,111 6,111 4,862 1,249
Unemployment compensation 1,905 1,905 151 1,754
Employee retirement 6,133 6,133 6,067 66
Employee insurance 17,995 17,995 17,998 3)
Payroll taxes 6,941 6,941 6,787 154
‘Total Personnel Services 130,113 130,113 128,396 1,717
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Tires and tubes 1,500 1,500 1,179 321
Minor tools and apparatus 700 700 629 71
Chemical and mechanical 250 250 108 142
Safety supplies 150 150 80 70
Other supplies 150 150 115 35
Total Supplies and Materials 2,750 2,750 2,111 639
MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS/LAND:
Streets and alleys 25,000 25,000 24,997 3
Storin sewers and drainageways 25,000 25,000 21,868 3,132
Total Maintenance of Buildings/Land 50,000 50,000 46,865 3,135
MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY:
Machinery and heavy equipment 5,000 5,000 5,431 (431)
Automotive equipment 2,500 2,500 878 1,622
Shop equipment 1,000 1,000 661 339
Minor tools and equipment 500 500 129 371
Signal and sign system 2,500 2,500 1,740 760
Communication equipment 250 250 220 30
Total Maintenance of Equipment/Machinery 11,750 11,750 9,059 2,691
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
Leases and rentals 2,000 2,000 600 1,400
Insurance 3,424 3,424 3,299 125
Total Contractual Services 5,424 5,424 3,899 _1,525
TOTAL STREET AND GROUNDS
MAINTENANCE 3 200,037 $ 200,037 190,330 9,707
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VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL _(UNFAVORABLE)
COMMUNICATION CENTER
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Operations and naintenance $ 132,230 $ 132,230 123,413 8,817
Overtime 10,000 10,000 18,550 (8,550)
Uniforms and clothing 500 500 171 329
‘Workers compensation 438 438 290 148
Unemployment compensation 2,987 2,987 318 2,669
Employee retirement 9,615 9,615 9,338 277
Employee insurance 32,000 32,000 28,596 3,404
Payroll taxes 10,881 10,881 10,581 300
Total Personnel Services 198,651 198,651 191,257 739
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Office supplies 1,000 1,000 1,001 (1)
Data processing supplies 700 700 284 416
Photo/audio/video 150 150 - 150
Emergency medical services 75 75 - 75
Janitorial supplies 100 100 28 72
Educational and training 150 150 150 -
Total Supplies and Materials 2,175 2,175 1,463 712
MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY:
Office equipment 500 500 - 500
Cominunication equipment 750 750 98 652
Total Maintenance of Equipment/Machinery 1,250 1,250 98 1,152
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Communication services 2,500 2,500 2,277 223
Business and travel 1,050 1,050 305 745
Data processing maintenance 500 500 - 500
Memberships and subscriptions 600 600 522 78
Total Contractual Services 4,650 4,650 3,104 1,546
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Office equipment 4,500 4,500 269 4231
Total Capital Outlay 4,500 4,500 269 4231
TOTAL COMMUNICATION CENTER $ 211,226 $ 211,226 196,191 15,035

46




CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

SCHEDULE "3"
Page 7 of 9

VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
POLICE OPERATIONS
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Administration $ 65,122 $ 65,122 $ 65,122 -
Clerical 64,452 64,452 61,942 2,510
Operations and maintenance 612,831 612,831 559,869 52,962
QOvertime 42,000 42,000 40,556 1,444
Special projects 27,240 27,240 27,211 29
Uniforms and clothing 5,000 5,000 5,720 (720)
Workers compensation 17,654 17,654 16,067 1,587
Unemployment compensation 16,472 16,472 1,512 14,960
Employee retirement 53,026 53,026 49,463 3,563
Employee insurance 123,628 123,628 109,946 13,682
Payroll taxes 60,007 60,007 56,499 3,508
Total Personnel Services 1,087,432 1,087,432 993,907 93,525
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Office supplies 6,000 6,000 5,274 726
Data processing supplies 300 300 107 193
Photo/audio/video 1,000 1,000 695 305
Laboratory supplies 1,500 1,500 3,105 (1,605)
Postage and delivery 700 700 494 206
Tires and tubes 9,000 9,000 3,002 5,998
Motor vehicle supplies 30,000 30,000 39,645 (9,645)
Emergency medical supplies 150 150 171 (21
Minor tools and apparatus 1,000 1,000 1,064 (64)
Janitorial supplies 1,000 1,000 757 243
Safety supplies 3,000 3,000 2,475 525
Educational and training 2,500 2,500 2,065 435
Other supplies 8,000 8,000 8,000 -
Comununity resource supply 1,000 1,000 973 27
Evidence processing 250 250 - 250
Evidence supplies 400 400 343 57
CID supplies 300 300 15 285
Total Supplies and Materials 66,100 66,100 68,185 (2,085)
MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS/LAND:
Buildings and grounds 7,000 7,000 4,325 2,675
Total Maintenance of Buildings/Land 7,000 7,000 4325 2675
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MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY:

Office equipment

HVAC equipment
Automotive equipment
Shop equipment

Minor tools and equipment
Communication equipment
Outdoor warning system
Other maintenance

Total Maintenance of Equipment/Machinery

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Communication services
Insurance
Advertising
Business and travel
Contractual/fee services
Utility services
Data processing maintenance
Memberships and subscriptions

Total Contractual Services

CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Machinery and equipment
Other equipment
Motor vehicles

Total Capital Outlay

TOTAL POLICE OPERATIONS

ANIMAL CONTROL
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Operations and maintenance
Overtime
Uniforms and clothing
Workers compeusation
Unemployment compensation
Employee retirement
Employee insurance
Payroll taxes

Total Personnel Services

VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
500 8 500 465 35

200 200 - 200
25,000 25,000 23,613 1,387
350 350 329 21

250 250 28 222
1,000 1,000 625 375
10,000 10,000 10,480 (480)
100 100 - 100
37,400 37,400 35,540 1,860
16,720 16,720 16,488 232
19,115 19,115 18,697 418
2,000 2,000 3,254 (1,254)
2,500 2,500 3,515 (1,015)
45,000 45,000 42,116 2,884
15,000 15,000 11,148 3,852
2,000 2,000 1,438 562
750 750 528 222
103,085 103,085 97,184 5,901
1,700 1,700 683 1,017
53,300 53,300 52,528 7
71,100 71,100 67,239 3,861
126,100 126,100 120,450 5,650
1427117 § 1,427,117 1,319,591 107,526
27,004 § 27,104 27,356 (252)
300 300 210 90
250 250 397 147

752 752 422 330

575 575 79 496
1,852 1,852 1,815 37
5,175 5,175 5,173 2
2,096 2,096 2,109 (13)
38,104 38,104 37,561 543
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VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
ANIMAL CONTROL (cont'd.)
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Tires and tubes $ 700 $ 700 $ 120 $ 580
Motor vehicle supplies 100 100 1 89
Minor tools and apparatus 250 250 215 35
Chemical and mechanical supplies 100 100 - 100
Safety supplies 100 100 154 (54)
Educational and training 100 100 15 85
Total Supplies and Materials 1,350 1,350 515 835
MAINTENANCE OF BUILDING:
Building and grounds 200 200 - 200
Total Maintenance of Equipment/Machinery 200 200 - 200
MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY:
Automotive equipment 700 700 87 613
Total Maintenance of Equipment/Machinery 700 700 87 613
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Insurance 571 571 557 14
Business and travel 150 150 126 24
Custody support services 500 500 120 380
Contractual and fee based services 9,000 9,000 5,730 3270
Memberships and subscriptions 50 50 - 50
Total Contractual Services 10,271 10,271 6,533 3,738
TOTAL ANIMAL CONTROL : $ 50,625 $ 50,625 $ 44,696 $ 5,929
FIRE OPERATIONS
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Contractual/fee services 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
Total Contractual Services 120,000 120,000 120,000 -
TOTAL FIRE OPERATIONS $ 120,000 $ 120,000 $ 120,000 $ -
SANITATION
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Contractual/fee services $ 506,741 $ 506,741 $ 515,884 $ (9,143)
Sales tax 43,700 43,700 44,351 (651)
Total Contractual Services 550,441 550,441 560,235 (9,794)
TOTAL SANITATION $ 550,441 $ 550,441 $ 560,235 3 (9,794)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -
BUDGET BASIS $ 3,473,706 $ 3,473,706 3,248,034 $ 225,672
Financial Statement Adjustments:
Transfers on expenditures paid in other funds 87,414
Capital expenditures recorded in Utility Fund (5,168)
Increase in accrued expenses 5,287
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -
GAAP BASIS $ 3,335,567
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:

Due from Utility Fund

Due from Capital Projects

Due from 1988 Street
Construction Fund

Due from Interest and
Sinking Fund - 1985
Certificate of Obligation

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Due to General Fund

Total Liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Restricted:

Debt Service

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

SCHEDULE "4"

1996 SERIES
GENERAL 2004 SERIES 2006 SERIES GENERAL
OBLIGATION  CERTIFICATES  REFUNDING OBLIGATION
NOTES OF OBLIGATION FUND BOND TOTAL
- $ -8 -s - $ -
38,690 - - - 38,690
3,050 - - - 3,050
2,150 - - - 2,150
77,041 - - - 77,041
120,931 $ - 8 - - $ 120,931
104,346 $ -8 - $ -5 104,346
104,346 - - - 104,346
16,585 - - - 16,585
120,931 $ - 3 -8 -8 120,931
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REVENUES
Current and delinquent taxes
Interest income

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Debt Service:
Bond principal
Note principal
Interest and fees

Total Expenditures

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under)
Expenditures and Other Uses

Equity Transfer
Fund Balance (Deficit), October 1, 2010

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT),
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

SCHEDULE "5"

1970 SERIES 1996 SERIES
GENERAL GENERAL 2004 SERIES 2006 SERIES ~ GENERAL
OBLIGATION  OBLIGATION  CERTIFICATES  REFUNDING  OBLIGATION
SEWER BOND NOTES OF OBLIGATION FUND BOND TOTAL

$ -3 259,739 $ 64917 $ 234,807 103,006 $ 662,469

. 867 - . . 867

- 260,606 64,917 234,807 103,006 663,336

y - 25,000 120,000 95,000 240,000

- 45,169 - y - 45,169

- 1,976 39,917 114,807 8,006 164,706

. 47,145 64,917 234,807 103,006 449,875

- 213,461 - y - 213,461

- (219,724) - . - (219,724)

- (219,724) - - . (219,724)

- (6,263) - - . (6,263)

(106,147) 40,513 (3,050) 68,684 -

106,147 (17,665) 3,050 - (68,684) 22,848

$ -3 16,585 $ - 3 - -8 16,585
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SCHEDULE 6
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CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
UTILITY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
TOTAL
OPERATING 2007 DEBT UTILITY
FUND SERIES SERVICE FUND
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and certificates of deposit $ 722,979 $ - $ 37,141 $ 760,120
Due from other funds 325 - - 325
Accounts receivable (Net) 769,210 - - 769,210
Total Current Assets 1,492 514 - 37,141 1,529,655
Restricted Current Assets:
Temporarily Restricted
Customer deposits 187,440 - - 187,440
Total Restricted Current Assets 187,440 - - 187,440
Water rights - Lake Columbia 230,000 - - 230,000
Bond Issue Costs (Net) 98,498 20,013 - 118,511
Capital Assets:
Land 25,000 - - 25,000
Easements 7,800 - - 7,800
Buildings 324,633 - - 324,633
Water and sewer system 24,204,608 - - 24,204,608
Machinery & equipment 933,527 - - 933,527
Construction in progress - 717,581 - 77,581
Less: Accumulated depreciation (5,912,930) - - (5,912,930)
Total Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 19,582,638 77,581 - 19,660,219
Total Noncurrent Assets: 19,911,136 97,594 - 20,008,730
Total Assets $ 21,591,090 $ 97,594 $ 37,141 $ 21,725,825
(continued)
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SCHEDULE 6

Page 2 of 2
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
UTILITY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
TOTAL
OPERATING 2007 DEBT UTILITY
FUND SERIES SERVICE FUND
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 30,042 $ 35,188 $ - $ 65,230

Deferred revenue 80,885 - - 80,885

Due to other funds 42,004 - 96,291 138,295
Total Current Liabilities 152,931 35,188 96,291 284,410

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 187,440 - - 187,440
Accrued interest - - 81,226 81,226
Revenue bonds payable 700,444 75,000 - 775,444
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets 887,884 75,000 81,226 1,044,110
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Revenue bonds payable 13,973,556 1,665,000 - 15,638,556
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 13,973,556 1,665,000 - 15,638,556
Total Liabilities 15,014,371 1,775,188 177,517 16,967,076
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,908,638 (1,677,594) - 3,231,044

Unrestricted 1,668,081 - (140,376) 1,527,705
Total Net Assets $ 6,576,719 $ (1,677,594) _§ (140,376) $ 4,758,749
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OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales
Sewer charges
Assessment revenue
Tax revenue
Charges for other services

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Utility administration
Customer service
Water operations
Sewer operations
‘Water supply
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and fiscal charge expense
Amortization of bond issue costs
Interest income

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

Income before transfers

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets, October 1, 2010

Net Assets, September 30, 2011

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
UTILITY FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

SCHEDULE 7

TOTAL
OPERATING 2007 DEBT UTILITY
FUND SERIES SERVICE ELIMINATIONS FUND

$ 2213965  § - s - - $ 223,95
756,870 - - - 756,870

- - 20,545 - 20,545

- - 802,070 - 802,070

136,659 - - - 136,659

3,107,494 - 822,615 - 3,930,109

620,454 - - - 620,454

97,788 - - - 97,788

238,715 - - - 238,715

210,120 - - . 210,120

399,801 - - - 399,801

564,835 - - - 564,835

2,131,713 - - . 2,131,713
975,781 - 822,615 - 1,798,396
. - (886,781) . (886,781)
(13,581) (2,205) - - (15,786)

738 572 867 - 2,177

(12,843) (1,633) (885,914) - (900,390)

962,938 (1,633) (63,299) - 898,006
2,357,996 - 787,444 (2,920,548) 224,892
(642,623) (1,744,315) (679,326) 2,920,548 (145,716)
1,715,373 (1,744,315) 108,118 - 79,176
2,678,311 (1,745,948) 44819 - 977,182
3,898,408 68,354 (185,195) - 3,781,567

$ 6,576,719 8 (1,677,594 § (140,376 - $ 4758749
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SCHEDULE 8

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

UTILITY FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

TOTAL
OPERATING 2007 DEBT UTILITY
FUND SERIES SERVICE ELIMINATIONS FUND
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers and users $ 2,977245 $ - $ 822615 % - 3 3,799,860
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (1,039,555) - - - (1,039,555)
Cash paid to employees for services (521,500) - - - (521,500)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,416,190 - 822,615 - 2,238,805
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances to other funds - - (6,262) - (6,262)
Transfers in 5,168 - 804,045 (584,321) 224,892
Transfers out (642,623) - - 584,321 (58,302)
Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital financing activities (637,455) - 797,783 - 160,328
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases or construction of capital assets (21,964) (646,386) - - (668,350)
Interest paid - - (918,076) - (918,076)
Principal paid on note (9,326) - - - (9,326)
Principal payment on bonds made by Debt Service Fund 604,326 75,000 (679,326) - -
Principal paid on bonds (595,000) (75,000) - - (670,000)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (21,964) (646,386) (1,597,402) - (2,265,752)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest earned on investments 738 572 867 - 2,177
Net cash provided by investing activities 738 572 867 - 2,177
Net increase (decrease) in cash 757,509 (645,814) 23,863 - . 135,558
Cash, beginning of period 152,910 645,814 13,278 - 812,002
Cash, end of period $ 910,419 $ - $ 37,141  § -3 947,560
Reconciliation of cash to Schedule 6:
Cash - current asset $ 722,979 $ - $ 37,141 % -3 760,120
Cash - restricted current asset 187,440 - - - 187,440
Total cash, end of period $ 910,419 $ - $ 37,141  $ - 3 947,560
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) To Net Cash
Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 975,781 $ - $ 822615 % - $ 1,798,396
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation expense 564,835 - - . 564,835
Increase in accounts receivable (232,992) - - - (232,992)
Increase in accounts payable 5,823 - - - 5,823
Increase in deferred revenue 75,218 - - - 75,218
Increase in customer deposits 27,525 - - - 27,525
Total adjustments 440,409 - - - 440,409
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES _$ 1,416,190 $ - $ 822,615 § - 3 2,238,805
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SCHEDULE "9"
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

UTILITY OPERATING FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Charges for services:
Water sales $ 1,778,464 § 1,778,464 $ 2,189,510 $ 411,046
Sewer charges 719,421 719,421 750,658 31,237
Tap and connect fees 18,540 18,540 27,747 9,207
Penalties 59,783 59,783 108,912 49,129
Interest and rent 500 500 738 ) 238
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES -
BUDGET BASIS $ 2,576,708 $ 2,576,708 3,077,565 $ 500,857

Financial Statement Adjustments:
Debt Service Fund payment of

principal on bonds and note 604,326
Transfers recorded for completed projects and capital expenditures 1,753,670
Increase estimate for uncollectible accounts (21,872)
Water and sewer usage for September 2010 billed in subsequent month (260,639)
Water and sewer usage for September 2011 billed in subsequent month 313,178

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES - GAAP BASIS $ 5466228
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UTILITY ADMINISTRATION
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Administration
Uniforms and clothing
Workers' compensation

Unemployment compensation

Employee retirement
Employee insurance
Payroll taxes

Total Personnel Services

SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:

Office supplies

Data processing supplies
Postage and delivery service
Motor vehicle supplies
Educational and training
Other supplies

Total Supplies and Materials

MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS/LAND:

Buildings and grounds

Total Maintenance of Buildings/Land

MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY:

Office equipment
HVAC equipment

Total Maintenance - Equipment/Machinery

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Communication services
Insurance
Advertising
Business and travel
Legal fees

Contractual and fee basis service

Utility services

Data processing maintenance
Utility billing - dataprose
Computer leasing services
On-Line / credit card fees

IT support

Document shredding

Memberships and subscriptions

Total Contractual Services

CAPITAL OUTLAY:
Other equipment

‘t'otal Capital Outlay

SCHEDULE "10"

Page 1 of 4
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
UTILITY OPERATING FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
118,754 $ 118,754  § 120,944 (2,190)
500 500 238 262
1,703 1,703 566 1,137
2,494 2,494 72 2,422
8,028 8,028 7,936 92
14,116 14,116 13,901 215
9,085 9,085 9,057 28
154,680 154,680 152,714 1,966
1,500 1,500 1,478 22
1,000 1,000 0 1,000
1,500 1,500 2,156 (656)
14,000 14,000 19,191 (5,191)
300 300 125 175
1,000 1,000 814 186
19,300 19,300 23,764 (4,464)
1,500 1,500 1,212 288
1,500 1,500 1,212 288
720 720 720 -
500 500 - 500
1,220 1,220 720 500
5,500 5,500 6,142 (642)
21,569 21,569 21,022 547
200 200 819 619)
500 500 785 (285)
2,500 2,500 5,347 (2,847)
10,184 10,184 11,705 (1,521)
309,000 309,000 291,778 17,222
25,000 25,000 23,984 1,016
23,500 23,500 23,761 261)
15,120 15,120 14,782 338
12,000 12,000 14,421 (2,421)
21,000 21,000 21,000 -
500 500 338 162
600 600 492 108
447,173 447,173 436,376 10,797
15,000 15,000 16,873 (1,873)
15,000 15,000 16,873 (1,873)
638,873 $ 638,873 § 631,659 7,214

TOTAL UTILITY ADMINISTRATION $
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CUSTOMER SERVICE
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Clerical
Operations and maintenance
Overtime
Uniforms and clothing
Worker's compensation
Unemployment compensation
Employee retirement
Employee insurance
Payroll taxes

Total Personnel Services

SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS
Other supplies

Total Supplies and Materials

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
Insurance

Total Contractual Services

TOTAL CUSTOMER SERVICE

WATER OPERATIONS
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Operations and maintenance
Overtime
Uniforms and clothing
Workers' compensation
Unemployment compensation
Employee retirement
Employee insurance
Payroll taxes

Total Personnel Services

SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Tires and tubes
Water meter supplies
Minor tools and apparatus
Chemical and mechanical supplies
Botanical and agricultural supplies
Educational and training
Other supplies

Total Supplies and Materials

MAINTENANCE - BUILDING/LAND:

Buildings and grounds
Chlorination facilities
Water system

Meters and settings
Other

SCHEDULE "10"

Page 2 of 4
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
UTILITY OPERATING FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 58,645 $ 58,645 55,630 3,015
22,943 22,943 13,224 9,719
3,500 3,500 1,327 2,173
300 300 300.00 -
2,171 2,171 1,504 667
1,787 1,787 223 1,564
5,751 5,751 4,537 1,214
15,526 15,526 13,884 1,642
6,508 6,508 5,188 1,320
117,131 117,131 95,817 21,314
300 300 300 -
300 300 300 -
1,712 1,712 1,671 41
1,712 1,712 1,671 41
$ 119,143 § 119,143 97,788 21,355
$ 111,930 $ 111,930 98,294 13,636
7,000 7,000 8,431 (1,431)
2,000 2,000 2,000 -
4,137 4,137 3,404 733
2,498 2,498 295 2,203
8,040 8,040 6,983 1,057
28,751 28,751 24,830 3,921
9,098 9,098 7,781 1,317
173,454 173,454 152,018 21,436
2,000 2,000 662 1,338
15,000 15,000 11,729 3,271
1,500 1,500 568 932
15,000 15,000 15,215 (215)
500 500 - 500
1,500 1,500 1,265 235
750 750 525 225
36,250 36,250 29,964 6,286
5,000 5,000 2,889 2,111
6,000 6,000 2,308 3,692
25,000 25,000 23,798 1,202
7,000 7,000 7,435 435)
30,000 30,000 2,500 27,500
73,000 73,000 38,930 34,070

Total Maintenance - Building/Land
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SCHEDULE "10"

Page 3 of 4
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
UTILITY OPERATING FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
WATER OPERATIONS (cont'd.)
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY:
Machinery and heavy equipment $ 10,000 $ 10,000 § 9,690 § 310
Auto equipment maintenance 1,500 1,500 1,132 368
Safety and medical equipment 300 300 36 264
Total Maintenance - Equipment/Machinery 11,800 11,800 10,858 942
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Leases and rentals 1,500 1,500 1,855 (355)
Insurance 1,712 1,712 1,671 41
Business and travel 1,000 1,000 780 220
Contractual and fee basis service 6,000 6,000 4,120 1,880
Regulatory inspection fee 6,000 6,000 5,885 115
Total Contractual Services 16,212 16,212 14,311 1,901
TOTAL WATER OPERATIONS ‘ $ 310,716 $ 310,716 $ 246,081 $ 64,635
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS
PERSONNEL SERVICES:
Operations and maintenance - S 79,436 $ 79,436 $ 80,848  § (1,412)
Overtime 7,000 7,000 7,835 (835)
Uniforms and clothing 1,500 1,500 1,500 -
Workers' compensation 2,130 2,130 1,318 812
Unemployment compensation 1,815 1,815 151 1,664
Employee retirement 5,843 5,843 5,937 %94)
Employee insurance 16,615 16,615 16,608 7
Payroll taxes 6,612 6,612 6,754 (142)
Total Personnel Services 120,951 120,951 120,951 -
SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS:
Tires and tubes 2,000 2,000 1,460 540
Minor tools and apparatus 2,000 2,000 1,012 988
Chemical and mechanical supplies 27,000 27,000 21,319 5,681
Safety supplies 1,000 1,000 900 100
Educational and training 1,500 1,500 811 689
Total Supplies and Materials 33,500 33,500 25,502 7,998
MAINTENANCE - BUILDING/LAND:
Building and grounds 2,000 2,000 1,288 712
Sanitary sewers 15,000 15,000 11,446 3,554
Lift stations 25,000 25,000 19,671 5,329
Other 30,000 30,000 - 30,000
Total Maintenance - Building/Land 72,000 72,000 32,405 39,595
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SCHEDULE "10"

Page 4 of 4
CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)
UTILITY OPERATING FUND
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
VARIANCE
BUDGET BUDGET FAVORABLE
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS (cont'd.}
MAINTENANCE - EQUIPMENT/MACHINERY:
Machinery and heavy equipment $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 6,111 $ 3,889
Automotive equipment 1,500 1,500 443 1,057
Shop equipment 1,000 1,000 652 348
Communication equipment 250 250 - 250
Total Maintenance - Equipment/Machinery 12,750 12,750 7,206 5,544
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Leases and rentals 500 500 - 500
Insurance : 1,141 1,141 1,114 27
Business and travel 1,500 1,500 - 1,500
Contractual and fee basis service 20,000 20,000 21,788 (1,788)
Regulatory inspection fee 7,000 7,000 6,745 255
Total Contractual Services 30,141 30,141 29,647 494
TOTAL WASTEWATER OPERATIONS $ 269,342 § 269342 § 215711 § 53,631
WATER SUPPLY
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Contractual and fee basis service $ 271,708 $ 271,708  $ 386,824 § (115,116)
Total Contractual Services 271,708 271,708 386,824 (115,116)
TOTAL WATER SUPPLY $ 271,708 $ 271,708  $ 386,824 $ (115,116)
UTILITY DEBT SERVICE
DEBT SERVICE:
Revenue bonds principal $ 301,000 $ 301,000 $ 301,000 $ -
Revenue bonds interest 283,321 283,321 283,321 -
Due to other funds - - - -
Total Debt Service 584,321 584,321 584,321 -
TOTAL UTILITY DEBT SERVICE $ 584,321 § 584,321 $ 584,321 § -
‘TOTAL EXPENSES - BUDGET BASIS $ 2,194,103 § 2,194,103 $ 2,162,384  § 31,719

Financial Statement Adjustments:

Amortization 13,581
Depreciation 564,385
Record transfers to other funds 58,302
Reclassify capital expenditures (16,796)
Increase in accrued expenses 6,061
TOTAL EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS - GAAP BASIS $ 2,787,917
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SCHEDULE "11"

CITY OF WHITEHOUSE, TEXAS

DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGET BASIS)

ENTERPRISE DEBT SERVICE FUND

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

REVENUES
Property taxes
Project assessments
Interest income
Transfers in

TOTAL REVENUES - BUDGET BASIS

Transfer of interest costs on construction projects

TOTAL REVENUES - GAAP BASIS

EXPENSES

Bond principal:
2001 Certificates of Obligation
2003 Certificates of Obligation
2006 Certificates of Obligation
2007 Certificates of Obligation
2008 Certificates of Obligation
2007 Refunding

Bond interest:
2001 Certificates of Obligation
2003 Certificates of Obligation
2006 Certificates of Obligation
2007 Certificates of Obligation
2008 Certificates of Obligation
2007 Refunding

Administrative fees

TOTAL EXPENSES - BUDGET BASIS

Transfer of interest costs on construction projects
Interest paid on Utility Fund note
Change in accrued interest on bonds

TOTAL EXPENSES - GAAP BASIS

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
$ 911,002 $ 802070 § (108,932)
17,000 20,545 3,545
835 367 32
584,321 804,045 219,724
$ 1,513,158 1,627,527  $ 114,369

(16,601)

$ __1.610.926
$ 75,000  $ 75,000  $ -
209,000 209,000 -
110,000 110,000 -
75,000 75,000 -
116,000 116,000 -
85,000 85,000 -
425,000 425,000 -
18,139 18,139 -
100,380 100,380 -
76,788 76,788 -
106,153 106,153 -
190,315 190,315 -
1,383 1,300 83
$ 1,588,158 1,588,075  $ 83

(16,601)

9,326

(14,693)

$ __ 1,566,107

61



110 ‘0€ YHIWALdAS
- S1dSSV TVININNIIAOD

SAOIYa A 391[0d
ANNA TVIANED
SSANNA TVINFANIIAOD WOYA SINIFNTILLTA

syuawaAosdurf 10ong
AdNNA SLOAr0dd "TV.LIdVDO L00T
‘SANNA
SLOdr0odd TV.LIdVO WOYd STANLIANIdXH

juswdmbyg 29 Asauryory
SAIY=A 391od
sjuswaaoiduwy Joang
ANNA TVIENTD

‘SANNAT TVINGWNITAOD WO YA SHINLIANAIXH

- $ €80°LIT‘T $ 18T°c6L $ 6S6°8YT°L § IPSS6Y'T § T8LGTT § 9F9°E8LIT §

- - (679°%ET1) - - - (629°v€1)

- - - PI¥°L8 - - PI¥°L8

- 65195 - - - - 6S¥°95

- - 70%°89 - - - 089

- - - 16¥°0 - - 16+°0%

- $ vT9°090'T $ 80S°6S8 $ SO ITI‘L $ IPSS6vT $ T8LGTT  $  60S°S99TT §
SSTIDOUd INANINOA SoLNV TINLOMILSVEAINI  SONIATING ANV TVIOL

NI YAHLO
NOLLONMYLSNOD  INAWAINOA @ AJANIHOVIN

uClla ITNATAHROS

1107 ‘0€ YAAWHALJAS AAANT AVIA TVOSI

010T ‘T 1290100 - S19SSB [BJUSUILIDAOD)

HOYUNOS A4 - SLASSV TVLIdVD TVININNITAOD NI SHONVHO 40 HTNAAHOS

SVXAL ‘ASNOHALIHM 40 ALID

62



ovI°LT $  609°€S $ 0000ST°T  $ 000°0LS°C $ 0007501 $ - SSL°S00'

- £8°ot - - - - €891

- - - - - 96¥°S 96¥ S

- - - - - 69%°L 69%°L

- - - - - 01¥9T 01%'9T

- - - - - 16T°11 16T°11

- - - - - 97€%6 97€'6

- - 000°ST 000°0T1 000°S6 - 000°0¥T

- - 000°ST - - - 000°ST

- - - 000°0C1 - - 000°0Z1

- - - - 000°S6 - 000°s6

$T0°€ - - - - - ¥20°€

¥20°¢ - - - - - $20°€

(4874 $  TSH'001 $ 000°SLT°T  § 000°069°C $  000°00T $ 961" vS 0LO'PYE Y
TTAVAV ANIL SHONASIVY SANAS SANIHS SANIIS HTdVAVd TVIOL

AMOLVSNAdNOD QILVYSNIdNOD 00T 9002 9661 SALON

W€l T1NAIHOS

1102 ‘0€ YHGINALJIAS AIANT HVAA TVOSIA

$ 110T ‘0€ YHIWILIAS
‘1490 ANNA TYINTFWNITAOCD

saouasqe pajesusdwo)
SIUSWIAINSY 910N [BI0L

9[0401010]N
SOJOIYOA
oyyoeg

Yonil 0S 14 pI0g
jueg unsny

:9[qeAed S9ION

SIueWAINSY puod [eI0L
uonEsIqQ JO SRS H00T
spuog Surpunyoy xeIpawIT 9007
uonesIqQ [RISUSD) UOIONISUOY) 19911S 9661
:Tediourid puog
SINIWNHIILHY
SUONIpPPY [BI0L

a1qeded owm A1ojesusdwio)
SNOILIAAV

$ 010T 1 1390120 193p punj [RIUSWIUISAOD)

L9430 WIIL-ONOT TVINTNNIATAOD NI SEONVHD A0 TTNATHIS

SVXAL ‘ASNIOHALIHA 40 ALID

63



L6EOV8Y 1L6°1T8°1 LTSOPL Yy SLL 000F%1+°91 000°0L9 - 000°+80°L1 000°€8°12
000779
000°109
000°88T
000°6LT
000°0LT
000797
000°€5T
000°$+T
000°8€T
000°0£2
000°2TT
000°¢1T
000°60T
000°L91
000191
000901
000°601
000001
£2-51-70 03 90~ 1-7 Woy sjunowe
1¥8°€ 8ETHTT €T 000°€12 000°5¢e¥ 000°60T - 000°P¥9 000°5LS Y Butkiea ur A[jeuos s|qedeq
To'rL8 69L°TTT 69L°101 000°121 000°118°C 000911 - 000°LT6°T 000°001°¢ %0L'E 82-6 1-Z 03 sjunowe Suikiea ut Ajenas siqedeq
250965 8rS'8rl 8HSEL 000°SL 000°0tL°L 000°5L - 000°518°1 000°000°C %TE Y 9751~ 0} syunowe Juikiea ut Ajeuss sjqekeqd
£Trsrel 19L°512 19L°L81 000°8T 000891 000°68 - 000°€ST Y 000°65¢°y %eS v L-61-C o1 sunowe Buikiea ut A|[enes sjqeded
050°S1L §59°01¢ §59°56 000°S11 000°5£€°C 000°011 - 000°sh1°T 000°008°C %0T ¥ 9Z-51~7 0} sjunowe Suikea ur A[euss sjqededq
68£°50€° $ 000008 $ 955°9LT $ YPH'ETT  $ 000°5T6Y 000°6L $ - $  000°000°S 000°000°c $ %T'S 1T-51-6 0} syunowe Sutkiea w A[jeLias 3jqeded
SYVAA 2ANLNT TY10L LSTYALNI TYJIONIId 11-0£6 SINFWTULLTY AVAA 01-1-01 aanssI ALVd XINNIVA
NI QIAIAO¥d 39 ONIANVISLNO AVAX LINTIENO HONVIVE sanod ISTIALNI
OL LSHIALNI ININAND aanss1 any
HION/ANOY T1-0£-6 ONIANA AVAA TVdIONRId ALON/ANOE SYAGWNN ANOH
SINIWAIINOTY ISTIAINI
ANV TVdIONIEd ALON/ANOE
1102 ‘0€ YAGWALIAS AIANT YVAX TVISIA
FTAVAVd SELON ANV SANOI NOILVOI'TEO TVIANGD ANV ANNAATY A0 ATNATHDS
¢Jo[93eg

Wb AINAANDS

SYXAL “‘ASNOHNILIHM J0 AL

£0/S1/T

80/C1/E

LO/ST/S

LO/ST/L

90/1/%

Lo/sT/s

d1va
4NsSsI

sanandy 3dL[ sssuisng [ej0],

uonedqQ JO sAeOIL)
19M38 29 1M -£00T

uonedi|qQ JO sEIIPSD
JOMIS 79 1B M -800T

uonesIqQ JO SeredIIa))
JOMIG 79 191 M -L 00T

spuog Bulpungay X2, L00T

uoneSIqQ JO SeTedIIe))
1M P 191 M -900T

suonesiqQ Jo seSIN)
SNUBAIY XE ], uoljeuiquio)) 1007
SHILIALLDY Hd AL SSANISNE
SSANJH1LEIaNI QIANOE

64



680°6€6'S 1976261 LIE668 Py 00’1 000°6€££°0Z 000°016 E 000°6¥T°1Z 000VLE LT
769°860'1 06L°L0Y 06L°T51 00055 0007526°€ 000°0¥Z - 0007591t 000°0YS°S
SLS'6¥8 STTYET $TT601 000°5Z1 000°0LS°T 000°0Z1 - 000°069°C 000°0F '€ %08'F 92-61-Z 01 sjunowe Juikrea 1 A[[enas 3[qeded
LUT'6YT 608°59 6080 000°5T 000°0SZ ¥ 000°5T - 000°5LZ°1 000°00%°1 %08t €2-51-Z 01 spunowe Furkiea ut Ajjenos ajqeied
%STS 0005018
%ST'S 000°56$
%STS 000°06$
%ST'S 000°58$
%ST'S 000°08%
%S1'S 000°5L$
%EL'9 000°0L$
%599 000°0LS$
%599 000°59%
%599 000°09%
%599 000°55$
%599 000°55$
%599 000°0S$
- 95L°L01 95LT 0007501 000501 00056 - 000°00Z 000°000°T %599 000°St$
Z1-0€-6 01 Sjunoure SurArea ut £[jeues sjqeded
SYVIA TANLN TVIOL LSHIALNI TVAIONIEd 11-0€6 SINAWNF AT AVEA 01-1-01 [ERERH HIVY XIENLVN
NI QadiAQdd 39 ONIANVISLNO AvaA ANTIAND HONVIVE SaNod 1STIALNI
OL LSHYALINI INENANO ganssl anv .
ALON/ANOY T1-0€-6 ONIANE AVHA TVIONIId HION/ANOE SYAIWNN ANOH
SINIWHIINOT T LSTAILNI
ANV TVdIONIEd ALON/ANOE
110Z ‘0€ HAGWALJIAS CAANT HVIX TVISIA
ATAVAVA STLON ONV SANOE NOILVOI'TEO TVHANID ANV HANAATH 40 ATINAAHIS
€Jjo 798eq

ubl, HINAAHDS

SYXHL ‘GSNOHIALIHM A0 ALID

SSaupalqapu] papuog [ejo],
192 papuog puny {eIauan) [e10],

spuog
90/$1/01 SuIpuyY XL pANWIT 9007

0/51/E uonEsqQ JO SARIFIND $00T

96/S1/11 spuog uoESIqQ [eIU3D) 9661
194d qddNod
149d ANN TYINFWNIFAOD
Iiva
anssI

65



630°6£6 S $ 1906261 $LIE668 $ vPP0E0T § 0006EE0Z  §  96b 96 $ - $ 96Y°E0E 1T $  000LELT $
- - - - - 967 S - 96¥ TS
- - - - - 69b°L - 69%°L %$'€
- - - - - 01492 - 019z %$'E
- - - - - 92€'6 - 9Z€'6 %EE
- - - - - 162°11 - 162°11 %S6'Y
SAVAA TANLNA TVIOL ISHYdINI  TVdIONIEd T1-0€6 SINAWTILLAY AVAA 0I-1-01 ansst EA
NI q4dIAO¥d 34 DNIANVLSINO AvaA INTIEND HONVIVE SaNod LSHIALNI

OL LSTYAINI INTNIND aanssi any

H1ON/ANOY Z1-0£-6 DNIQNA AVAA TVJIONIdd HLON/ANOE SYIANNN ANOE

SINAWTIINOTY LSTYHLINI
ANV TYdIONIId ALON/ANOE
1102 ‘0€ YAAWALIAS AAANT YVAX TVOSIA
ATAVAVd STLON ANV SUNOE NOILYOI'TE0 TVHANTD ANV ANNTATY 40 T 1NAIHOS
€Jo gadug

bl ITINATHDS

SVXHL ‘ASNOHALIHM A0 XLID

Zl/8l/Lo
11/80/L0
80/T0/60
Li/91/€0

ALNNLVA

1994 TV.IOL

193] pung [EJUSWUISAOD)
- 3|qeAed SIION [eICL

8002/81/L o[ohdI010

800%/8/L SIPIYRA
80/01/01 0514 PIog 3007
90/91/¢ souyoeg
jueq uiisny
HTAVAVd SZION
FIva
ANSSI

66



OTHER REPORTS



BB Gollob Morgan Peddy
el

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
City of Whitehouse, Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Whitehouse, Texas, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City of Whitehouse, Texas’ basic financial statements and
have issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the City of Whitehouse, Texas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Whitehouse,
Texas’ internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City of Whitehouse, Texas’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, that are described
below that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Personnel Polic

The City’s personnel policy contains a clause referencing employee compensatory time. Under the policy, no full
time employees may accrue more than 240 hours of compensatory time (480 for police officers). However, the
policy does allow for the compensation of excess compensatory time exceeding the 240 hours should the
employee’s work situation require them to be present and thus exceed the maximum allowed accrual. This
exception must be approved through written notice from the City Manager. As of September 30, 2011, the City
had one employee that exceeded the maximum limit which amounted to a $10,882 liability to the City.

As of the date of this report, the City has one final payment on the excess compensatory time.
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Purchasing Procedures

As part of the City’s purchasing procedures, purchase orders are to be obtained for capital purchases. During the
current year, the City acquired a vehicle but there was no purchase order issued. The vehicle purchase was
accounted for in the current year budget.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Whitehouse, Texas’ financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and the management of the City of
Whitehouse, Texas and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.
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Celjtiﬁed Public Accountants

Tyler, Texas
December 21, 2011
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